
 

 

 
 
#plymcouncil 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Monday 25 November 2013 
2.00 pm 
Council House (Next to the Civic Centre), Plymouth 
 

Members: 
The Lord Mayor, Councillor Mrs Pengelly 
The Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Churchill 
Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Ball, Mrs Beer, Bowie, Bowyer, Mrs Bowyer, Casey, Coker, Damarell, 
Darcy, Philippa Davey, Sam Davey, Mrs Dolan, Drean, Evans, K Foster, Mrs Foster, Fox, Fry, 
Gordon, Haydon, James, Jarvis, Jordan, Martin Leaves, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Lowry, 
Dr. Mahony, McDonald, Monahan, Morris, Murphy, Mrs Nelder, Nicholson, Mrs Nicholson, 
Parker, Penberthy, Rennie, Ricketts, Dr. Salter, Singh, John Smith, Peter Smith, Stark, Stevens, 
Jon Taylor, Kate Taylor, Tuffin, Tuohy, Vincent, Wheeler, Wigens, Williams and Wright. 
 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 

This meeting will be broadcast live to the internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated 
viewing.  By entering the Council Chamber and during the course of the meeting, councillors are 
consenting to being filmed and to the use of those recordings for webcasting.  Although the 
public seating areas are not filmed, by entering the meeting room and using the public seating 
area, the public are consenting to being filmed and to the use of those recordings for webcasting. 
 

The council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy. 
 
 

Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 

 

 Democratic Support 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
Please ask for  Nicola Kirby 
T 01752 304867 
E nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
Published 15 November 2013 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for absence submitted by councillors. 
  
2. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 20) 
  
 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 

September 2013.     
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   (Pages 21 - 22) 
  
 Councillors will be asked to make declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. A flowchart providing guidance on interests is attached to assist councillors. 
  
4. APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES, OUTSIDE BODIES 

ETC   
(Pages 23 - 24) 

  
 The Interim Director for Corporate Services will submit a schedule of vacancies on 

committees, outside bodies etc and of changes notified to us.    
  
5. ANNOUNCEMENTS    
  
 (a) To receive announcements from the Lord Mayor, Chief Executive, Interim 

Director for Corporate Services or Assistant Director of Democracy and 
Governance; 

 
(b) To receive announcements from the Leader, Cabinet Members or Committee 

Chairs. 
  
6. QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC    
  
 To receive questions from and provide answers to the public in relation to matters which 

are about something the council is responsible for or something that directly affects 
people in the city, in accordance with Part B, paragraph 11 of the Constitution. 
 
Questions, of no longer than 50 words, can be submitted to the Democratic Support 
Unit, Plymouth City Council, Civic Centre, Plymouth, PL1 2AA, or email to 
democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk. Any questions must be received at least five 
complete working days before the meeting. 
 

  



 

 

7. MEMBERS' ALLOWANCE SCHEME: REPORT OF THE 
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL   

(Pages 25 - 44) 

  
 The Chief Executive will submit a report on the Members’ Allowance Scheme following a 

review of the scheme by the Independent Remuneration Panel.   
  
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CABINET 
  
8. CAPITAL PROGRAMME APPROVALS   (Pages 45 - 48) 
  
 The Assistant Director for Finance, Efficiencies, Technology and Assets will submit a 

report on Cabinet recommendations for a scheme to be included in the capital 
programme and an increase in the allocation for an existing scheme.  

  
MOTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
To consider motions from councillors in accordance with Part B, paragraph 14 of the 
Constitution. 
 
 
9. YES TO HOMES CAMPAIGN   (Pages 49 - 50) 
  
 The motion will be moved by Councillor Lowry and seconded by Councillor Nicholson.  
  
10. DEVELOPMENT IN THE NORTH OF THE CITY   (Pages 51 - 52) 
  
 The motion will be moved by Councillor Ian Bowyer and seconded by Councillor Patrick 

Nicholson 
  
11. REDEVELOPMENT AND ENHANCEMENT OF COLIN 

CAMPBELL COURT AND SUPPORT FOR PLYMOUTH 
CITY CENTRE AS THE RETAIL CENTRE OF THE CITY   

(Pages 53 - 54) 

  
 The motion will be moved by Councillor Patrick Nicholson and seconded by Councillor 

Darcy. 
  
12. BEDROOM TAX AND SAFE ROOMS   (Pages 55 - 56) 
  
 The motion will be moved by Councillor Williams and seconded by Councillor Penberthy. 
  
13. ANY FURTHER MOTIONS SUBMITTED    
 
14. QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS    
  
 Questions to the Leader, Cabinet Members and Committee Chairs covering aspects for 

their areas of responsibility or concern by councillors in accordance with Part B, 
paragraph 12 of the constitution. 
 

  



 

 

15. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item of business 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000.   

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, Council is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
  
16. SENIOR MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE (E1)    
  
 The Chief Executive will submit a report on the senior management structure. 
  
 



���������	�
�����
��������������������

���������	�
�
�

����
��������������������
�

���������
�
���������	
�����
����������	��������������������
�
����
����������������	
�����
����������
���������������
�
����

�����������	��������
����	������������������������	�����������

�����
�������
�
������
�
������������
��
 ����!
���
 ����	������
������
���" 
����#�$�������	���$�������$�%��$����
&�������'
������(
�����(
� ����(���
���	���
�����
 ���������������	
������	����
����
	��
�
���	�������	�������	���)�������)����������	���)�����������
���������*�������+�������
+�������������!
������!������(����!������������!������!�
����!�� �����(����
������#
����
������
��,,��������������������-��������-�������-����
���
���-�������
�
��������
�����
���.���
��������/
���,�"%����� �0���
 ���!��������/'�
���,����
��!�� ����0�
(������!�����/������
����
���	��*���!�������	
�
���0�
���)����
�#��*��/������
������������
1,,����0����
�
����������,���
*�����.�
������������
����	
�������
 ���
���!
����
 ���
�������'�����
/������
������������,����
���������
���
���&� ���
���0���
�
��������������
�����
��2���
���,��������
��3�24����
�
�����������	
�
�������
����������
��
���
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
��������������������
�
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
������������������
�
���������
��������������
�

���� ��� ������
�
��������������������,��������������,�����
����
���������������22�(����2456���
�

���� !��"#�#��$���$%������������
�
������������������
�
�������,����������,��������������������
�����
�������������������,�
���������������
����������������������������
�����
����������������
�

���� #��$����������$��$��������&�$ ���!��'$!����������
�
������������,�����7����������������,���
�����
���!�� ������
����*����������
�
����
����
�����������������,�����������
���������,�����������������
������������,����
���
������
���
���&� ���
����8�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Agenda Item 2Page 1



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

�

������������� ������()���

��*������� ��������� 1 �� ���� 
���
!�������� �
���� 
��� 
�9����
�� ��
!����������
���


���������� 	��
�
�� ��� ����
���

���������� !
�� ��
 ��� 
�� �����

�
����,� �����
���� 
������*���
�,� ���� 
�9����
�� �� !��������
��
���

�
�����������,���������
������������8�
��

� �����������(�
���
$�)����'����(��

������()��� #����������(�
����*�+�

/
0� �����������$�����
/!������0�

1��� 
�
����
�������
,����������
������,�

����������!
��
��
 ����
�


����������	��
�
��

/*0� �� ���
���!��������
$����
���+������
����������
�

1��� 
�
����
�������
,����������
������,�

����������	
�����
��
 ����
�


�����������
����

/�0� !�
�������� ������

���������,���
+���������"���
������
�

1��� 
�
����
�������
,����������
������,�

����������+���������
�


�������������
	
�����

�
���� #��$ �����������

�
�)��"�����
����8�
�

/
0� �����������
�� ����!����
��1�������� /,��������������������
�������0�
��������������
���
������������������
����$�������,�������������������
�
�� ������������ *�� 64� 
������������ 
���� ��� 56����
��� ����������
,������������
��������������	
���������
���
���������
���,���*�����
�����
�*
��
�����,�������
�����,���������:�

/*0� 
��������� ��
�� ���� ��������� ��,�� 
������� �
�� *���� 
�
����� 
�
���*����,���������,����
�
����9�

� �� ,
�������
�����;�����,�����<�
�������
� 
����� ���=6�������>�
��
����	�����������?�-�������	�������)���������������
����
2456:��
�

� �� �����������,�@�����
�����������������>�
������2456����
��
�������������������
�������/���
0�����������"%�����������
����
!�����-���:��
�

Page 2



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

� �� 
������
�����,���
����
��
����
��
�
����
�
�����������
�������
�,�@�����
�����������������>�����������������*��
������������
)� ��*���2456:��
�

� �� �������
�����������,
�������@	
;������;�����,�����<�
�>�
������
7����������,�
� ���"���������!�����-����
�
��������������
�

� ���������	
������������������
�
������������'�������/,������
���;����	
�
���0��
�����+
��
���/!��
������$��
����	
�
���0��������
����
��/!������
�������
���
����0�
�������'�
���/���������

���������
����
���0�����
����������������*��
�,��,�
���������
����������*��������
�����������;���������
�

/�0� 
�����������
��
��������!�� ������
��,�������,��������������� ��
��
��*����
�
����������
����
���������������
��������!�� ����
"%�����������
������������� ����������������
�
�����������
����
��
��������� ����������������������������������
��������������,�
��
����������*��������������������������� ������
������
�������

��
����
����������

�
���� �����	
���� ���������� ���� �����,��
��� ��� ������ +���� /��� ����
�
�
���0��
�
���� "��
���� /��
�� ��
���0��-
����'��*����� ������
�
�������
���&
 ���1>+�����/
���������� �����0�����
��������������
*��
�,� �,� 
��� ������ ��� ��������� ��� ����� ���� ����� ��� *��
�����
���
�������������
���� �������

��
����	�

����-
�(�.����	�
�"�
���/�0�
�

/�0� �����������
���
��
���������,��
;�������������
�������,�������
������
�������,�
������������*���� �����������
��������������� ���������
�����
��������������*����������������������
����������
�������
A#�
��
��������������������������
�����'���
���
���������������
��
������
����,������"��
�������
��
���������������������� ����
��
*�
����� �������
������������
��������������� ��������������
���

 
��
*�����
�����:�
�

/�0� ��
�� 
� ������� ��� �
�� ����� ��� ���� +�� '��� �
������ 	����������
/!�����
��� �,� !�
��� ,��� ��
������0�� ������ �
����� ��������� �����
���
��� ��� ���� ������ ����� �%�������� �,� ���� &��
�� -������� +
���
$�
������� ������ ������ ���� ���� ���� ��� ��������� �������
����� ������������������
������������������9,���������� ����
�������
�
��� �,� 
�� �
���� �������� ��
��� ,���� ������� ��� ��������� �����
������,���� 
��� ��� �
�� 
����� ,��� �� �������� 
�����
���� ��� ����
���� ���� �,� ���� ����� ������� ������� ���� �������� ,�
�������

��
�����������

��
�
�
�
�

Page 3



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

�
����	�

���1�

�
�(�.�
�������������2����)�
�����
���3���4�����
�/�
���������
��
������
����
������>��"���
�����

�������!�� �����
�������,�������,��
������,��������������
��
����������,������
������������

�������,�����<�
��
������"�A�

�������"%���������
��
����2456�������
�������������,������������������*���
������5B�1���*���2456���!���
��
���������

���������
�����������
���� ������������
������
����
���������
����
����
/"���
�����
���

�������	
�
���0��
������
����,�������������������
������������
�

���� 5 ����$���'3��6��� '"�����
�
$����C����������
��*��������� ���,�������*�����,�������*����������
���������
�������������
����������������,����������	
�������������� 
����������*���������,����������������

�����
����������
�
��
���54��,�������������������
�
	��-����
���/DE0�
��������������������
���
��������������������������
����������*�����9�
�

��������	

�	

��������	
��	


������	������	 �������	

DE?5695B� 	�� (�
-����
���


����������������/

*�����
	��*���,���$��
���0�

����������������!�����
/���������
���0�
�

��
*������1�����

�����!�������
��

���
���*��
�������������������>��������,�������������
�
��������
%��
����
���
���
*������1�����
�������
�����*������.�9�

5�� 
�������
�����
2�� ���������
6�� ����
���
B�� !�
,,��
�
�����
F�� 1��������������

�
-�
������������������>����
��������������
���
����
����������*����������
������������244G���
������������,���������
���
*�������������
��=6H�
�
���������	
�
����=6���
������,���������*����������������������
������������������ �������
���
��
�����������*������������,��������������,�
���
*������1��������������;����
�������������,�������,�
�����������
���� �� ���
������,���
,,������
���
���������� ����� ��
����������
�
-���������*��
�������������������������� ����,����
���
����C���������������
C������������ ��������
�����,������
������*����������������,��������������
��
,,�������
�
�
�
�
�

Page 4



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

1�������
��������
��
������������,�*����������������
���,��
�����������
�����,��
�����
,,����������������������
���������� ���������C������,�����
*������
��������!�
,,����������
�����
�����*�����������������������
�
������
��
���
���������C���������������
���������������,�������������������������,��
�����
������������
�����C�����
��
�����������*���,��������
��������
�
��
*������1������
���
�������,��
����������,����������������-��������������
�����������
���,�����������
��� ����������������������������������*������
�
�
���������,��
�����
������������
������ ���
���
������
����,�����*���,�������
�����������
������������������
�
�

�*�����
����
�
���������
7�$��&������,�E4����
��
������������*����
��������������
������
������������
�����
���
*����*�������������
��
 ��
����
1�����
*�������������������,�=E6�����
�����������
 ��
����,�=EE�/
7�$��
������
 ��
���,���2452?560�
�
7����������
������
��������
������,������C���������
���
���C�
��������,�����
��
�����
������������������
����������
�
��������������������
��
��
��������������
�����,����7��
��
�����������������
����
��7���
��������,������������������
�����
��������������������
�����������
���������
��������������
����,���*
������
,���������	

�
7������
*�������,�	��&������/DG0��
������������������������*��������������
����������
*�����9�

�
��������	

�	

��������	
��	


������	������	 �������	

DG?5695B� 	�� !�
&������


����������������/

*�����
	��*���,���$��
������

�������������*������
/

*�����	��*���,���
�9
����
�� ���
���

����������0�

���������� -����
���
/
�������� 
��� <�����
������0�

7��
����,�����

��������
%�
+���������!������
���,
�������
��

���� (������ +�������� ������� ������*��� ��������>�� 
������� �
%� ����������
�������
��
����������
��������������������������������
��������������������
������� ��������� � ����� ��������� �����
���� �,� ,
������� ����� ���������� � '���
������

��
*����������;����,�������
���
������������,
��������� �������>
�����
�� �����!��
����>H�����

Page 5



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

���������	
�
����&� ������������,�������,���
��������
%�*���,����
����
�����
��������*���������������
�������������������������������������
����������,����
5�������2456��
�
���������
����
��������������
������������������
�������������������
�����������
���������������������������,���������� �����*���� ���������-��
�� ����������������������
����������������� ��
�����������
����������!�����
-������������
�
$������������������������������
��������
%�*���,���,����������2456?5B��
��
����
�=2�3���
��
��������
�������������� ����,����������������������
 �����
���
����������������
��
��
�����������������,����������������
%�*�������
�
	����
,,����������
����������������
����
�������*����,�������� 
����
�����������������
*�������%�������,��%�*����������� ���������,������������,
���
��������
������������������������
���*������
*�������
���A�,�����
������,���
�����������������������������
��������������������,��
�����
�����������������
����������
�����������
�������
�=2�3�������
�����
����������*���,����
������

����������*����,�������������
�
1������������������������
��,���
����*
������
����������������
������
������������������*���,�����
�����
�
����������
�������,�������������
����
��
��������
%�!���������������

������������������,
�����,������
����������
�����������
������,�����
@*��������
%>���
����
����
������,��
���*����������
������� ���
���
���
,
�������
����������������-�����
����������������
������������������ �����

���
������
��� ����������������� �����
*���,
������������� ����
� ����
���
���������$����%
����������
 ��*�����������,���������������
���,
����������

������,�������
�����
���
�������
��*���,������������������
����������������
�
	� ����,���
��������������������������**�������� ��������,���
�,
�����
,��
���
��������������$����%
���������������������
�������� ��������
�����������
�����
%�������������
�����
�������������������������������
*
��������
����
�����
��������
%�*���,�����������������������������
	

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 6



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

	���������/D540�
��������������������
���
�������������*����������������
������
����*�����9�

�
��������	

�	

��������	
��	


������	������	 �������	

D54�?�
5695B�

	�� +�
�������


����������������/

*�����
	��*���,���$��
���0�

�������������*������
/

*�����	��*���,���
�9
����
�� ���
���

����������0�

���������� " 
��� /
�������
��
����

'�������*���,��.�����
�,������ ����
��

�
���"��	���*
����
���
�����
���,�
��
*����&� �������������������������
,����
����245F������
����������������������
������@���������
%>�������������
*���9
��������������������������� �������
���������������,
��������������*���,������
����������������
���,�������������
������ ��������������������,
��H�
�
���������	
	
-��,
�����,������
 ����������
�������,�*���,�����
����������
�������,������

��������������
 ��
���
���*�����������������������������������
�����
�����
�������������
������
��*����
����������
�����������*���,�����
��
�����,�
��������
���,����5�������2456��
�
����������������������������*���,������������
���������
������������-��,
���
+�,��������2452�
�����������������,���������
������*��������
%����I��
�������
���������9�����
��������
�����
�
���������
����
��������
�����,������������,�����
�������������������
�����
������������ ����������������
�������
*��������������� ������������������
���
��������������
����'��� ��������������������������**���� �����������
�����,,������
�����,
�����,���������
����
 ���������������� �����
*���
����������������������8�,����%
���������������������
�������� ��������
�����������
�����
%�������������
�����
�������������������������������
*
��������
����
�����
��������
%�*���,���������������������������
�
-���
 ��
�����������
����,
�����
�������� ����
� ����
��������������
���� ���
���
���,
�����������
�������������������������,��
�����
��
���������,�
���,
�����,����
����
 �����
��� ������������
��������������
���
���������
�����,�������
���*���,�������������������
����������������������������
���
	

�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 7



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

	����������
��������������������
���
��������������������������
����������*�����8�
�

��������	

�	

��������	
��	


������	������	 		

D55?�
5695B�

	�� )�
��������


����������������/

*�����
	��*���,���$��
���0�

���������� ������ !�����
/���������
���0�

��
*������1�����
������
��

�
A�������
����
���������� �������������
����
����������������=EF�44����������
�
�����
*������1�����,������9�
�������,�
��������
%�*���,��H�����������
����

��������
������������,��
���
�����
������,������9�
�������,�
��������
%�
*���,����
�
���������	
�
���������
����
���������������������� ���������,��
��������
�����������������
������������ ���
���
���,
�����������
����������������������������,��
���
��
�*���
�������-������
����*����,����
��� ����
������,���������������������
���������������
������������������
%������������*���,����������������

��
������,��%�*����
��������
���*
����������� ���
����������
�����
���
��� ��������
����
����������
���
� ������������
������
�������,
�����������
��
����
�
'��� �������
�����������,��
��������������
������������������
*����������������
���
�����������������
��������������������������
�������
����
*�����������������
������,����������,���
*������1�����,������9�
�������,�
��������
%����
��4�

������+.7/��2��)������	�
��
8�.
�����
�����2��	�����/�
��4�

����(��99�:�
�
����������
�������
*���� ������������ ������� �����������
���
*��� ��������� ���
�*�
����������������	

�
���$����!#��$���%�$���#'�����#�!��6���$0$���#��;����� ���3�
'$#�!���
�

�	�� %��
�	�����<��
���

��	)���(���
�

����������������/

*�����	��*���,���$��
���0���������������

*��������������
��������

�������
�����
���������������������������
���
�������
�����/

*������������2B�
��,�����0��

�

����������
�����/

*�����	��*���,�����
������0��������������������
����
�

������������������/

*�����	��*���,���"� ��������0�
������������������
���7���,�����
 �������
�����
�������
������������
�������
�
�

Page 8



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

���������
������������������
���
�������������
���
�������
�������
������=6�6��
��
,�������8��
�

�� �	
�;����������
����������,����'�����
�� =5�F��
�

�� ��������
�����
�������
���������
���7�� =5�E��
�

�
��  ��
����������(�����<���������(�� ���(�
��$	�
��������(���
�

����������" 
���/
���������
���0���������������

*��������������
����������������
"����������A�����
��1��
���!�������/

*������������2F���,�����0�
������
�������������������
����,��������
������������,�������,�=JGB�444����=E42�3FF������������������
�
���,������

������
����,���������
�

����������(
� ����������������������
���
�
$���������
���*
����
����������" 
��������
������
���,,�������������
���
��������������
�������
������
����,,�����
�*���,�������
�����������
�����,����������������
�
$���������
� �������*;�������
�,
 ���
*��������������*��������"�����
��+�����
��
�� ���������$����
���&���������
����$����
�����
����������������
��������������9�
�

/50� 
����
����
�
�����,���1��
��!�������
���������7��������
���
���
/
7
0�,������
�������,�����*
�
�����,����������>����
��,���������"��
�����
���������
��
%������,�=E42�3FF����
�����
���������
��
������
'�
����,�������*����������������
����
�������
�������1��
��
!�������
7
������������
���������������
��,��
���
�����
������������
����������������������
���������'�
����,����������*�������
�������
�������������,�����
��:�
��

/20� �
����
��
���
��������*�������,�=E42�3FF�,��������7� ��������$������
�

���� ����-�
��������2��)����-�	��������
���2������
		�����
�������=��������(���
�

����������������/

*�����	��*���,���$��
���0���������������

*��������������
�����
��������
���� 
���,�����
�������
����
���
��*���������
���� �����
����,�����
� ���
������

�������,������������ ����������,�����
� ���
������
���,������
�������
�����
��C����������/

*�������������6E��6E
�
���BF���,�����0��
�
����
����������,��������������
��
������
������������� 
��������������
���������,������
��
��,���
������������
��*����������
����
����
����,�������������������FF�*��������

�

������������,,����������������������
���
�

������������������������!�����
����������
��������,,������/����������
��/!������

�������
���
����0�
�������������/��
��,���
����������
�����	
�
���00��������
�����
,�������������������������;��������
�
$���������
���*
��������������
���
������������� �������
�

Page 9



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

�����������
�������
����
���
��*����������
���� �����
����,�����
� ���
�������
��������,����
�������������� 
������������,������������

*������������BF�
����������FF�*������
�

���� �)��'��

�
�����0����
��-������	�
���(�
��
�
���)����3�
���

����
�

����������" 
���/
���������
���0���������������

*��������������
�������������������
���

�9����
�� ��
�������!���
��
*���������<�
����
��/

*������������B2���,�����0�
���
�����
������
��������������
 ������������
�����������=3F�����������������,
��������������
��>�
������
���
��,���
����������
�����
��*������� ������������
� �������
��������
�
��������
��
����
��������� ��������� ������������������������������������
��������
������������
�������
�9����
�� ��!����������
����7��
����������������������*����������
*���� ��������;����
������������
��,���
������� ������&��������������
�

����������-����
����������������������
��
�������
����������������
�����,�
��������
����

����
������������������
�

����������(
����/
�
����,�����
�9����
�� ��!����������
��0���������������
���������
�������,�����
�9����
�� ��!����������
������������
��/�������35���,�����0�
���
���������������
��,���
�����������
������
�
$���������
���*
����
����������" 
���
� ��������*������
������
��
���������
����������
-����
���
������

*�������
��,�����
��,���
��������������������

�
�������������
�������,�����
�9����
�� ��!����������
����������������������������������


*��������������
������
������������
���C�����,���
�,���������������������
�9����
�� ��
!����������
������53�1���*���2456������
����������" 
���
�������
���,�"%����� ��������
����������������
��,���
����������
����
��������������������������������� ���
����
������
����
�
�������9�
��

/50� ��� 
����� 
� ������� ����� 
����
��� ��� 
���������� ���� ���������� ���
,������� 
 
��
*��� ��� ���� ��������� ��
������ ,��� 
� *
�
����� �����
�� ��
*����������
����,��������������������
��:��

/20� ��� �������� ���� ���������
����� �,� 
� �������9����� ��
��,���
�����
�����
����� *
���� ��� ��9����
�� ��  
������ ��� ��*��
���
���� �������
��������
������������,�������������
���������������
%����������*���
�� �����������
���� ���������������>���*;���� ��:��

/60�

��

��
�� 

*����� �� ����� �
��
����� ����� ��� 
��� *
�
����� ��� �������
��
�� ���� � ��
��,���
����������
���� ����� �� ��� 
��C�
��� ��� �� ���
�
��� ,���� ��C���������� ,��� ���� ������� �,� 2456?5B� ��� 2453?5J�
/�
�
����� ���� � ��
��� ������ ��������� 
��� �
 ����� 
���� ��� 
������
�
���,��
���
����
�0��

�
�
�
�
�

Page 10



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

�
�� 1�'�#����>���
�

����������������!�����/���������
���0��� ����
���
����������!�� ������������������
���������
�����������������������������,�����������
������������,����
���������
���
���
&� ���
���������*�
��������
�
�������������*
����������������
��������������8�
�

/
0� ��
����*�
�������
������ 
����������� ��� ���� �������� ,��
���
�� ����
���
������
������������
������
����������������������:���

/*0� ��
�� ���� ����� �,� =JB�444��
�� ;����,���� ��� �����
��� ��*���� 
������ ���
������������������
����:��

/�0� ��
���������������
������������������������
�����
���
�����:��

/�0� ��
����������,�=FF�444��
��*���������
�������������������������,�
�����������
���
������
���:�
����

/�0� 
� ��� �������������� ��� *�� 
���������� �
��� 
��� ���������� *�� ����

����
������� ���1���*��� 2454� ��� ���
����� ��� ���� ��,��������� �,� 
�
*
�������������������������������,��������
����
������������
�����

��?��� �������
�����

�
�������������*
�������������	
���������������������������������
������������*��
 �����
���
��������������*���������*����������������������
�������������
�������������*�
�����
�

����������!���������������������������������*������
������������
���
��*��������������

�������������
����
�����������
��+� ����&�����
����
��*������
����������������������
�
$���������
���C�����,��������������������,���
���������� ����������� �����8��
�
$��������������/620�
�
��
��
������������#
������'��
�����������������(������������(������"�(������)������*�+��,�������
-�������.���
���/��������(�����������
����
�#�����������������������������������0���
���"
�����.��
"�
�������"�
����"��������.��1�������2��1�������1
		
���1
�����3
�������4��������4
��
��������4�
������
�
��
����������������/240�
�
��
��
����������'�����'�����������'�������(����������(������(������*�����������*�������*����.������
.��������
������/�������(��������������������
��������������
���������0
��������(��"�������"�����
����4
��
������
�
�*����������/20�
�
/����������5���
�6�������
��
�������
���
���5(�#
���/���������6��
�
�
�

Page 11



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

����,������������*���������
*�����/60�
�
��
��
������'���������
��/����������"���/���������
�
������������
���
������
�������
������������9��

�
/50� ��������������������*�
�������,���������:�

��
/20� ��
��� ���� ������ 
��� ���������>� ������
������ � ����� 
������ ����

����������
�

	��� �$����� ��$�#"��6#�>�����"#����>��$���������$!��$%�
��#������#�!�������$%���%���������
�

����������������!�����/���������
���0��� ����������������
����������������������������
�,�����	����������1,,��������������
������
���������
�����,���
������
����������,�
��,���������

�

����������!�� ����/
�
����,�������
������
��������0��������������������
��������
�
$���������
� ���������
������������
�����9��

�
/50� ������ �������
������
���������
�����,���
������
����*������:�

��
/20� ���� ��
���� ��� ���� ��
������ 
��������>�� ������ �,� ��,������� 
��

��*����������
�

	��� #��#�>�������%$���$!��$%��$�! ����$��"#�������
�

����������������!�����/���������
���0�����������������������
���������������������
��������,�����������
������������,����
���������
���
���&� ���
�������
�����,�
�������
�����
����������
�
����������
�����������������*��
����������!�� ������
�

����������-��������� ���
���
��������������������������
��
������������
���
�����
�
�
��
���5�2�B��
��,�������8�
�

�@$��� 
��� �����
���� ��
�� ����� ���� ������� ��� ��,������� ��� ���� �������� ����
	��*��� /���� ��*;�����,� ���� �����
���0� ��
��� *�� 
� ������,� ���� �����
����
������� ,� �����������
���� � 7,�����
 
��
*���
����
�������� ,�������
������
���*��
��� ������������
�,�������54��
���>��

�
$���������
� ���������
����������
��
��������
�
�
�
�
�

Page 12



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

�����
�����������
��
���������
������������� ����
�������
������������,���
����
���������

��
���������,���
�����,�
������������
���������������������������������������
�����
����
�������������2E��,��������
���������2455����*;�����������
���������,�
������
�
��
���5�2�B��

��,�������8�
�
@$���
��������
������
�����������������������,��������������������������	��*���/������*;����
�,����������
���0���
���*��
� ������,����������
�����������,� �����������
�����7,�����
 
��
*���

����
��������,�������
������
���*����� ������������
�,�������54��
���>�
�
�$��$��$���$�������
�

����,�����������������
��*��������� ���,�������������������
�����
����������
������
�
�
��
���5B��,�����
�������������
�

	��� ��
4�(�*���8�

�(
������2��)�
�����
���3���4�����
����
�


����������#
����
������� ���
���
����������-����
����������������,�����������������
��

����������������
���������,���
����/F0�8�
�

��������������������������
��������%�
���
������,�������������
����9������

����� ����������������
������
����,����
�������
�����
����������� �����
��
�����
���������%�
��
�����%�
�����������������
�
�����������������������������������
�������,������� �������K���
�����
+� ���.�@��������
�����������
�������>��������
������
��������������
��������������
��
�����������������������
��
,���� ����������������
����������������������*������%�����������%�
��������
����������*����
��
������
�
���� ��,�������� �,� ��%�
���
����� ��� ����
����� ��� ���� '���� 1,,���� 9
!�%�
���
����� �,� <����� ������� +� ���.� ���� ����
� �
�
�����������
!�%�
���
��������������������������
����������������8�

��� �
 ��
�������%�
��������������������:��

��� 
��� ����� ������  
���� ������ ����� ,���� ������ ��%�
�� 
���
�� ���
*��
 ������ ��
�� ������ ������
�� 
���
��� ������ ��� ;������ ������������
*�������%������%���������,���������
�
����������:�
����

��� 
��� ��%�
���� �*;����,���� /�
��� ����� 
� @�����>� ,��� ������ ������K��
��%�
�� ����� �
����� ��
�� ����� 
�� 
� ������� ����� ���� �
�
����� ,���
������������
������
�������������
����0���

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 13



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

�������������8�
�

/50� ������������������������
��
�����������
�����������������������
���������
�������,�����%������������
�������
���
�����������
�����%�
��������
����
�������������������
��������
���
� ���������,���������
������ �����
������
���� �� ��*���
������ ������ �
���� ����� ��
����� ,���� �������� ������
*���������
������ ��������������������
�������������������:��

/20� �������������������
��������
����
���,��������
�����������
,,�
�����������
��� ���������:��

/60�

��

����������������
�������������������
���������������K��
�����������������
����
�������,���9�������
� �������������
��������%�
��������
��������
���
���������������������
���������������������������������+��������
�����
2��,������
�����+� ����
��������� ���������!�
��
����������>�������������
�����%�
����
����������������
� ��������:�

/B0�

��

������
��������
���������
���������
���������������������������������
�����
�,���%�
��������
��������
����������������������*����������������������
��������:�����
������
��*����
����,����������������*;���� ����
�����������
����������������,����������,�����
��:�

/F0� ���������� ���� 
���,� "%����� �� ��� ����
��� ���� ������
��� ����
���� ���
���������,����������������
�����/50�8�/B0�
*� ����

�
�������������*
����������������
����������������
��9�
�

/
0� ���� ���������� ������ �
���� ����������� 
��� �
����� ���������� ���
���������
���������������:��

/*0� ������������ �
�� ��������*�������� 
�� ������
��� �
������ ��� �
��� �����

�������
���������������������������������
�������������������������
�
��:�

/�0�
��

��������*������ 
���� �
��� ����� �
������ ��� ����������� ��������� ���� *��
����������������

��
������������
��
���������
��
������,���������
�������
�����
�

	��� 5 ����$���'3��$ ���""$�����
�
7��
�����
����������
�
��
���52��,�����������������������,���������C��������������
������,�
������
�����

*�����	��*����
���
���������
�
������ ������
��������,�������
��
���,�
��������*������9�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 14



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

� %���� ��� ���?�	��
5� 
����������

)���������

����������
!�� ����

-������,������������
���������������
��
����+��
��-����
��<
���
����
���
������
�������
���� ��>���������������
�����
���
*�� ��� ����� ��� ���� �
�� �
������
���
�����������
���������� ��>�������H�


������������������������������
�������������� ����
�������������������

2� 
���������������� 
����������
-����
���

���� +�� '��� 	���
��� &� �� /!�����
���
�,� !�
��� ,��� "���
����0� �
�� �
��� 
��

������������ ��� ���� ���
���� ,����
���� ��� ������ �,� ,���� ������� ��
����
-�
�� �
�� ���� �������>�� ��������H� �����
�
����� ������ *�� ������� ��� 
�� �
��� �,�
����@)
������������&
�>��%��������


���������� -����
��� ���������� ��
�� ,��������� 
� ������ ��� ���� 
��
�� ��� ����
��� ������ �,� ,���� ������� ��
���� ��� �
�� *���� ,����� ��
�� 
��
������� �
�� *����
�����
���� 
����������� �����
��*���� ����� ����!����
�����
��������� ��
�� ����
�������� /,��������� 
� ������� ��*������� 
�� ���� ����0� �
�� ���� �
���� ����
���������������*���
����,��������������������

6� 
�����������
���� 
���������������� �������
�������
�����������������,
�������
����*��������������
��
����������������
 
���� ,��� ������ ,��� ��� ������ ,���
�%
����� ��� ��
�����H� � -����� ���

���������,����
���������������
%��
�����
������ *�� �
������ ��� 
� ��
������

�����
����������
������
���������
���
�������
����������������


���������������� ���������� @���>� ��� ���� ,����� �
���� �'���
����� ��� ������
������

�����
�����*��
�������,��������
��������
���,���������
������
�����������������

�������'���
�������������������
��*��������������������������

B� 
����������
�������


����������
-����
���

-
������
�
����,�������������*��
"�����
��A������
�������������
,��
���
����
��
��������
%��������
���
��
�������
%��
����������
��*��������
�%��������
���
����
�����������
����H��
-������,����������
���� ������������

���� ���*�����������������������������

��������������*������������H���
��
�


����������-����
���������������
���������������������
����,�����,,���������
����������
�������

F� 
���������� � ���
	
�����


����������
��������


����� ��� *�� ���
���� ��� ���� ���������
�,� ���� ������
������� �,� ���� ,���*
���
������ ,��������� ���� ���� 
�� �,� ������

�����
���������������,��
���������;�������

Page 15



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�


���������� �������� ���������� ��
�� ���� ����������� *�� �� ����������� �������� ���
��� ���� 
� ,���*
��� ������ 
��� ��
�� ���� $������� �,� 
����
�� �
��� ������ *�� �����
��,������ �,� ���������� � ���� ������
������� �
�� ���� �
��� �,� ���� ��,�� 
������
���;���� 
��� ��� ������ ���� ��� ���� 
�� �%
��� �
��� ,��� ��������� 
�� ���� ��������
��������

3� 
����������(���
��� 
����������
-����
���

����������������
������
��
�����
*���,���
,����
���,� ����
������������
 ���
������
���� ����� ��� ������H� ������ ����� ���
������������
����������� ���������������
���������� 
��� �
�� ��� 
�����
*��� ,���
�
������ ��� *�� 
� ����� ��� ����� ������
��������� ��� �������-��*������� 
� ,����
�����������������������H�


����������-����
���������������
��E4�����������,�����������
������� ���������
,�������������,���������������
��������� ���������
����������,��������������
��
������������
*�������,� ������������ �����
�� ,�����
����� �!����
���
������� �����
��

������� ���
���
����*��������������
����������

J� 
����������
)���������


����������
��������

'����
�� ���� �������� �� ���� ,���
���
��� ��
������ ������� ��� ���
����� ���
��
��>�� 7��
��H� 
����� ��� *�� ���
����
���
����������
�������������� ��� �������
����� �����������������
��H���


������������������������������
������
��
����������,�������
�����
���
������
�
��,
�����������
��������,������,,�����������������
���������������

���������	
���� 
� ����� ���� ������������ ����������� ������
��������������,� ����
���������

E� 
����������$��� 
����������
-����
����

-����� ���� ���������� ,���� �������
��
���,���� ���������H�


����������-����
���������������
�������
���������������,������ �����������
�������!����
���
�����
���������������
������
���
�������������������%
�����
������������
�������������������)
������������&
�>��%����������

G� 
���������� 	���
�����


����������" 
��� -��� ��� 

*����� 	��*���� �
 ��
������
�� 
�����
���� ��� �������� ������
������ ����� ����� �
 �� ���������

����
����� ��� �
���� ���� ������
�����������H��'�������������������H�
�
�
�


���������� " 
��� ���������� ��
�� ���� ����������� �,� �%����� �� 
�����
����
��
*���� 

*����� 	��*���� ��� ������
��� ������ ����� �,,���� ����� �
����� �����
����� 
������*��� ��� ���� ���������� 
��� �
������� �
����� ��
�� ��
����� �����

��������
�� �� 
��
���������� � '�� �
�� ���� ����
���� ��� �������� �
�
����� �,�
���� ���
�����������,�������

�

Page 16



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

54� 
����������(���
�� 
����������
-����
���

��� ���������� *
*�� *���� �
�� *����
������ ,��� ����� ����� *�� ��������������

����� ���� �������� ��
�� 
������ �
��
������ ��� *�� �
���� ����� ���
��� ���
��������� ��,,������ ���
�� 
��� ���� �
��
����������
�������
�H�


���������� -����
��� ���������� ��
�� ���� ���� ���� �
 �� ���� ,������� ��� �
����


���
����� �������
��*�����
���,��������%�
�������,�����
�����������
�������
�
���
������ ����
�����������������&� ��������,��������
��*�������
�����������
$����!��������

55� 
����������
	��
�
��


����������
-����
���

�� ������� ��
������� �����
���� ��
�� �����
��
�� �
�,� �,� ������ C���������� �����
�
������� ���� ��*���,� ��������� �����
������� 
,���� ��������� ���� �
�� ����

�
��� -�
�� �������
��� 
������� ���
��������H��


����������-����
������������� ��
�� ��
����*���,�������������
���� ��� ����
���
������,�� ��������� 
�� ����� 
��� ��
�� ���� �
�� �������� �
��� ,��� 
� ��������
� 
���
�
����
����������������������

52� 
�����������
���� 
����������
����� 
����� ��� �
 �� 
�� ���
��� ��� ����
��������� �,� ������ ��� ���� ;��������� �,�

���� '���� 
��� 	��
,����� +�
��� ,������
*��	��������H�


���������� 
����� ���������� ��
�� ���� ������ 
�� ���� ;��������� �,� 
���� '���� ?�
���������+�
��
���
����'����?�	��
,�����+�
���������*;�������
���� 
��*������
���
�� ��
������ 
��������� 
��� ��
�� ��� �
��� ��� ��
��� �
�� *���� ����� ���� �-
���
������������������*�������������������������
����

56� 
����������(���
�� 
���������� ������
!�����

-�
���
��������������,�������������
��
�,� ���� ���������� ��
��� 
��� ������ ���
�%��
������H��


���������� !����� ���������� ��
�� ���� ������
�� �
�� *���� 
������ ������ ����

����� 
�� ��
��������
������,���������������

5B� 
����������$������ 
����������
��������

-�
�� �
�� ���� �,,���
�� ������� ��� ����
���*��� �,� �
����� �
���� *
��� ��
��
������*������������,��������������H��


������������������������������
��������������
������*
������������������

5F� 
����������$��� 
����������
��������


����������� ���������������������������
��������� ��� ��
��>�� 7��
��� 
��� ����
1��
��C���*�������H��


���������������������������������� ����
�������������������

�

�

�

Page 17



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

53� 
���������� �
����
/��� *��
�,� �,�

���������� �
���
�����
��
*����0��


����������
������ 
����� ��� ,������� ���� ����� ���� �������
��� ���� ���� �,� ���� 

��� �
���
� �
��
���������,�����
����
�����H�


����������
��������������������� ��������������������

5J� 
����������
	���
�����
 ���


����������
��������

-����� ,���� *
��� �,� �
����� �
���� *��
����������,����
����������H�


���������� �������� ���������� ��
�� ��� �
�� ��� ������� �
����� ����� ������ �����
�,,������ 
��� ��
�� �,� ������ �
�� �
�
����� �
�� ��� ����  �������� 
��� �
����� �
����
�������*�������������

5E� 
����������(
���� 
����������
��������

-����� ���� ��
������ ������
�� �������
*��*������������������
����,���������H�


������������������������������
��
���������
��*������� �������
�����
��������
������*���������
������ �� �������

5G� 
����������
!�� ����


����������" 
��� ���� ��� ���
��� ��
�� ���� ��
��>�� 7��
���
��
������ 
�����
����� �
�� *����
���������,��� 
�� ���� 
�����
��� �
�� ����
��� ����� �
����� �������H� � ���� ��� ���
������ ����� *�� ������
���� 
�� 
�
�
������
�� ����� �,� ���� ��
�� 
����
�� ���
������
�������
���,���
�����������������
������
���
��
�����
����H�


����������" 
���������������
��������
�������
��
� �����'��������*����������
����
����,��������	����������1,,������������
��������,�������
������
���������
���*����

�
�����������������7
���
���������������
##����������7
���
���������
##�����������������������
������
����
�����
�

	��� �@�����' ���������
�
���������
��������!�������544�/B0��,��������
��&� ������������5GJ2�����������
�����*����

����%�������,����������������,�������,����������������,�*�������������������������
�������
�� �� �������������������������,��%�������,���
�����
����,���������
�
��
����2�
���6��,��
���5�
�,�!��������52���,����������
��
�������*������$��������,�7�,���
���������2444�� �
�

		�� ��!�;�"$������$%��6����;����������#�!�% � ���
#��$��$!#��$����5 ���������.��/���
�
-������,�����������������BJ�
*� ���������� 
���

*����������������������� ����������,�����

� ���
������
���,������
�������
�������C�����������
����*��������������
����
���������
�
�
�
�
�

Page 18



�
�����
��
��������� !�"�#�������$% &�

	
�� ����$���#�#>����������� �� ���.���
����/���
�
����
���,�"%����� �������������������������������!������	
�
�������+�����������
���
��,�������������
�����������������������������
��*����������
������

�

����������" 
���/
���������
���0�����������������������
����������������������������
���

����������$���/��
�����,�����1���������0��������������������
��������
���
$���������
���*
����
����������" 
��������
������
���,,������������*���������������������
,,�
������
�
���������
��8�
��

/50� ����������
���,�����
������������
�����
���	
�
���������
��
���
!������	
�
���������
��
���
���� ��:�

/20� �����������������
*����������������������
��������
���,�1,,�����
����������
���������������������������������:��

/60�

��


����������������
����������
*�����������������
����
������������
���������
���,�����������������,���������������� ��
������� ���
��
�������
�����������
���:�
���� ��������������,������,���������
���������:�
������������������������*����������:��
���
������������
���������
��
�������
���
���
����������������
���,�
���
���,�1,,�����
*����
����,�������
������*;�����������
����
������>��������
����
������:���

/B0�

��


������
���
����������
*�����������������
����
���������,�����
�����

���������������
���
���
���
�
�����
����������
��
���,�1,,�����
������
�����:�

/F0� ����
����
������>������������������
������������,�����������
��������
����
���,�1,,���������������
�������������
������,�������
�������������
�,�����!�������5F5�1,,�����
�������	����������1,,����:�

/30� 
�� ������������� �
���� ��� ���
*������� ����� �����
���� 
��������� ���

������� ��� ����  
�
��� ����� �,� ������
��� ��������� ,��� 
�9����
�� ��

�������������
���������!���
��

�����&� ������������������
����
��
������ ������� ��� ����������� ��� ����� ������ ����������������� �
���������
��������� �,� ������ 
��� ����
*��� ������
�� �
����
���� ���� ������ *��

��������� ,������ *�,���� ������������ 
�� �%����
�� ������������
�
��
������

�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 
 
 
 
 
           
          
 
         
    
         No   Yes 
 
 
 
 
   
    No   Yes 
 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
              
         
          
     
                
          
                
     
 
           
 
             
      
     
 

 
 
 
 
 
D
P 

I 

Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)?  This will include 
the interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees): 

• any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain 
• any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor or the 

councillor’s election expenses from a Trade Union 
• any land licence or tenancy they have in Plymouth 
• any current contracts leases or tenancies  between the Council and them 
• any current contracts leases or tenancies  between the Council and any organisation with land in 

Plymouth in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and 
securities 

• any organisation which has land or a place of business in Plymouth and in which they have a 
relevant interest in its shares or its securities 

What matters are being discussed? 

 
 
 
P
r 
i 
v
a
t
e 
 
I
n
t
e
r
e
s

t 

Does the business affect the well-being or financial position of (or relate to the approval, consent, licence or 
permission) for: 

• a member of your family or  
• any person with whom you have a close association; or 
• any organisation of which you are a member or are involved in its management (whether or not 

appointed to that body by the council).  This would include membership of a secret society and 
other similar organisations. 

 
Yes           No   You can speak and vote 

 
 
 
   

 
 

Yes    No 

Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid risk of allegations of corruption 
or bias 

Declare interest and leave (or obtain 
a dispensation) 

Declare the interest and speak and 
vote  

Will it confer an advantage or disadvantage on your family, close associate or an organisation 
where you have a private interest more than it affects other people living or working in the 
ward? 

C
a
b
i
n
e

t 

Cabinet members must declare and give brief details about any conflict of interest* relating to the matter to 
be decided and leave the room when the matter is being considered. Cabinet members may apply to the 
Monitoring Officer for a dispensation in respect of any conflict of interest. 
 
*A conflict of interest is a situation in which a councillor’s responsibility to act and take decisions impartially, 
fairly and on merit without bias may conflict with his/her personal interest in the situation or where s/he may 
profit personally from the decisions that s/he is about to take. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Final 15.11.13 Not protectively marked 

CITY COUNCIL 
25 November 2013

 
 

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES, OUTSIDE BODIES ETC 
Report of the Interim Director for Corporate Services. 
 

(1) The City Council is asked to consider the following appointments – 

 

   Committees and 
Other  Bodies  

Membership Appointments 
2013/14 

(a) Plymouth Charity 
Trust 

Current representatives are 
Councillors Penberthy and Jarvis, 
Mr M Foster and Mr C Robinson 

 

Councillor Damarell 
to replace councillor 
Penberthy 

 

(2) The City Council is asked to note the following changes notified to the Assistant Director 
for Law, Democracy and Governance –  

 

   Committee, Outside Body etc Membership 

(b) Co-operative Scrutiny Board  Councillor Darcy to replace 
Councillor Ball  

(c) Ambitious Plymouth Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 

Councillor Mrs Beer (Vice 
Chair) to replace Councillor 
Monahan 

(d) Caring Plymouth Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 

Councillor Ricketts to replace 
Councillor Michael Leaves 

(e) Working Plymouth Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 

Councillor Martin Leaves to 
replace Councillor Ball 

Councillor Darcy to replace 
Councillor Ball as Vice Chair   

(f) Your Plymouth Overview and Scrutiny Panel Councillor Sam Leaves (Vice 
Chair) to replace Councillor 
Bowyer  

(g) Taxi Licensing Committee Councillor Jarvis to replace 
Councillor Singh 

(h) Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

Councillor Mrs Bowyer to 
replace Councillor Darcy 

 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 23



 

 

 
There is one vacancy on the Caring Plymouth Overview and Scrutiny Panel following the 
resignation of Councillor Mrs Beer.   

 

Councillors are reminded that they should update their Register of Interest to take account of any 
changes to their membership of Outside Bodies. 

 

 
 

Page 24



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject    Members’ Allowance Scheme  

Committee    City Council 

Date    25 April 2013 

Cabinet Member Councillor Peter Smith  

CMT Member   David Trussler (Interim Director for Corporate Services) 

Author Judith Shore, Democratic and Member Support Manager 

Contact details   Tel:  01752 304494 
    email: judith.shore@plymouth.gov.uk  

Key Decision No  
 
Part: I   
 
Purpose of the report:  
 
The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) has undertaken a review of the existing scheme of 
Members’ Allowances and considered whether any changes should be recommended in accordance 
with legislative requirements, the government’s statutory guidance and recent changes to the 
committee structure. 
 
The Panel reviewed background information including the reports of the reviews of Plymouth City 
Council’s Members’ Allowances undertaken in February 2008 and February 2010 and the allowances 
of the fourteen other ‘comparator’ councils, issued a questionnaire to all Members, held interviews 
with a cross section of Members and Officers, reviewed interview and questionnaire evidence and 
arrived at their recommendations. 
         
The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/14 -2016/17  
 
None directly arising. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The Panel noted that Members Allowances had not increased since 2009.  This was in line with local 
government employees’ salaries, which had also (until this financial year) not increased since 2009. 
 
The estimated costs of the proposed scheme would be as follows:  
 
 PREVIOUS (£) NEW (£) VARIATION (£) 
Basic allowance 570,881.74 576,581.71 5,699.97 
Special responsibilities 313,740.10 316,876.84 3,136.74 
Lord Mayor and Deputy 18,557.64 18,746.16 188.52 
NI 58,462.31 59,754.83 1,292.52 
Pension 59,771.25 59,822.40 51.15 
Total 1,021,413.04 1,031,781.94 10,368.90 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 25



  
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management 

 
None directly arising. 

 

Equality and Diversity 

No implications 

  
Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 
 
Members are asked to consider the recommendations contained within the report of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel as follows: 
 

1. retain the existing level of the Basic Allowance and Special Responsibility Allowances (See 
Appendix B) subject to annual increase in line with the percentage increase of the local 
government pay award. 

2. retain the existing level of allowances for the Lord Mayor and the Deputy Lord Mayor and 
include the allowances within the Members’ Allowance Scheme, subject to annual increase in 
line with the percentage increase of the local government pay award (see Appendix B). 

3. retain the existing travelling and subsistence arrangements and amend in line with any changes 
negotiated to the ‘Plymouth Book’ (see Appendix B). 

4. retain all other arrangements (see the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel) 
 
The legislation states that the Council must have regard to the recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel when determining the Members’ Allowance Scheme. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
 
It is a legal requirement to regularly review the Members’ Allowance Scheme. 
 
Published work / information: 
 
Members’ Allowances Review – February 2008 and Minutes 
Members’ Allowances Interim Review – February 2010 and Minutes 
Statutory Instrument No. 1021 – The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 
2003, the Statutory Guidance on Members’ Allowances for local authorities in England  
  
Background papers 
 
None    
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin CF/CorpsF

DD1314001
.08.11.13 

Leg 18818/
DVS 

Mon 
Off 

TH 
0132 

HR  Assets  IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance 
Has the Cabinet Member agreed the contents of the report?  Yes 
  
 
 
 

Page 26



   

INDEPENDENT 
REMUNERATION PANEL 
 

25 November 2013 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Report on the review of the Members’ 
Allowance Scheme 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Judith Shore 
Democratic and Member Support Manager 
Democracy and Governance 
 

V.7  28 October 2013  Not protectively marked 
 

Page 27



CONTENT PAGE 
 
 
1. 
 

Independent Remuneration Panel’s task 

2. 
 

Panel composition 

3 
 

Scope of Review 

4. 
 

Background information 

5. 
 

Changes since the previous reviews 

6. 
 

Panel considerations 

7. 
 

Recommendations  

Appendix A 
 

Analysis of questionnaire 

Appendix B  
 

Members’ Allowance Scheme 

Appendix C Approved duties and claiming childcare and dependent carers’ allowances 
 

 
 

Page 28



1. Independent Remuneration Panel’s Task 
 
 The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) is tasked by the City Council to review the 

scheme of Members’ Allowances.  The Panel will make recommendations for appropriate 
changes in accordance with statutory requirements and guidance. 

 
2. Panel Composition 
 
 The IRP members are: 
 

Alan Wooderson (Chair)  
 

Chair of Devon and Cornwall Probation 
Trust 
 

Duncan Currall 
 

Chair of Destination Plymouth, Chair of 
Plymouth Community Healthcare, 
Governor of Plymouth University, member 
of the Plymouth Growth Board 
 

Sarah Errington 
 

Commercial Services Manager Plymouth 
University, Peninsula Schools of Medicine 
and Dentistry. 

 
 Members of the Panel may have some contact with the Council.  In the interest of 

openness and transparency they wish to state their links here. 
 

Alan Wooderson (Chair)  
 

As well as being involved with probation 
services provided to the people of 
Plymouth, Alan is occasionally involved in 
the resolution of statutory complaints 
made against Plymouth City Council 
 

Duncan Currall 
 

Duncan has regular contact with senior 
officers and Members of PCC in his roles 
with Destination Plymouth and Plymouth 
Community Healthcare 
 

3. Scope of Review 
 
 The previous full Members’ Allowance review was undertaken in February 2008 (Report 

2008, Minutes 2008).  A further interim review took place in February 2010 Report 2010, 
Minutes 2010.  Legislation (SI no 1021 – The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003 (as amended)) require the full Members’ Allowance Scheme 
to be reviewed again.  

 
4. Background information 
 
 In order to formulate their recommendations the IRP considered: 
 

• Previous IRP reports from February 2008 and February 2010; 
• Changes to Plymouth City Council since the last review (see section 5) 
• Questionnaires returned by councillors (20 out of 57 questionnaires returned) 
• Comparisons of member allowances of other similar local authorities as identified 

by the Audit Commission 

Page 29



• Evidence from interviews with councillors from the Cabinet, scrutiny panels, back 
benchers, the Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor and a co-opted independent 
member of a committee 

• Evidence from interviews with the Chief Executive and the Council’s lead scrutiny 
officer 

• Plymouth’s Corporate Plan 2013/14 to 2016/17 
 
5. Changes since the previous reviews 
 
 The IRP members were informed of the following changes that were seen as most 

significant since the previous reviews: 
 

• The number of Cabinet members has reduced from ten to eight  
 

• The new overview and scrutiny structure (five panels reduced to four panels and the 
chair of the Cooperative Scrutiny Management Board nominated from the opposition 
group).  See section 7.4. 

 
• Area Committees are no longer in existence and have been replaced by 

neighbourhood meetings 
 

• The various government legislative changes resulting in increased and more formal 
partnership arrangements and structures for commissioning and delivering services 
with  partner organisations 

 
The IRP members were made aware of the very significant financial challenges facing 
Plymouth City Council in line with all other local authorities 

 
6. Panel considerations 
 
 The IRP met on 6 occasions between 9 September and 15 October 2013 and considered 

the following: 
 

• The levels of the basic members’ allowances received by all councillors and the range 
of special responsibility allowance in place 

 
• Special Responsibility Allowance for the Chair of the Co-operative Scrutiny 

Management Board given the new arrangements for scrutiny within the Council and 
any consequences for the allowance for the Leader of the Opposition  

 
• Whether the Lord Mayor’s and Deputy Lord Mayor’s allowances should be included 

in the Members’ Allowance scheme 
 

• Travel and subsistence allowance for members 
 
• Childcare and dependent carer’s allowance 
 
• Co-opted members allowance 
 
• A request to review allowances for lead members/champions  

 
• The index against which members’ allowances are increased/varied  

Page 30



 
• Foregoing entitlement to allowances 
 
• The time limit for claiming dependent carer’s/travelling/subsistence allowances 

 
• Backdating of allowances 
 
• Councillors being eligible to join the local government pension scheme 
 
• Special Responsibility Allowances for Chief Whips 
 
• Special Responsibility Allowance for the Vice Chair of the Co-operative Scrutiny 

Board 
 

7. Recommendations 
 
 The IRP’s approach to its deliberations and subsequent recommendations for all the 

allowances was to consider: 
 
7.0.1 What had changed, if anything, from the last full review in 2008 and the interim review in 2010? 

 
The IRP was informed of changes that had taken place since previous reviews – see 
Section 5 above.  The IRP noted the information contained within the returned 
questionnaires and the information elicited from interviews undertaken with Members 
and officers. 
 
The IRP concluded that there had been no substantial changes which had resulted in 
significant additional responsibilities for any Member nor had there been a substantial 
increase in the number of hours that Members spend on council and community work 
each week.  

 
7.0.2 Was there any compelling reason to depart from the fundamental principles of the approach 

adopted when the original Members’ Allowance scheme was introduced? 
 

Given that there had been no substantial changes to responsibilities or to the time 
commitment required, the conclusion was that the fundamental principles should be 
adhered to. 

 
7.1 Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances  
   

The IRP noted that: 
 

• Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances have not been increased since 2009.  
This was as a result of the members’ allowances being adjusted annually by the 
percentage increase if any, awarded as part of the local government pay award. 
This indexation had been agreed as part of the 2008 IRP report.  Since 2009, local 
government employees’ salaries have not increased, consequently members 
allowances have not increased. 

• The budgeted cost of the governance and leadership provided by elected 
councillors is calculated at only 0.236% of the Council’s total revenue and capital 
budget, which in the view of the IRP represents good value to the citizens of 
Plymouth.   

 

Page 31



7.2 Basic Allowance  
 

A basic allowance is paid to all councillors.   
 
The IRP noted that, although there had been some changes to Members roles and 
responsibilities their essential duties and responsibilities remain as outlined in the 2008 
Report with an increased emphasis on community leadership as detailed in the 
Councillor’s Guide 2012-13 published by the Local Government Association. The 
statutory guidance says that the basic allowance is intended to recognise the time 
commitment of all councillors along with incidental costs but that it is important to 
recognise that some elements of the role of a councillor continues to be voluntary and as 
such some hours spent on Council business are not remunerated. 
 
The analysis of questionnaires returned (Appendix A) provides evidence of the average 
time spent by councillors on Council activities during a week. Although the 
questionnaires returned were from only 20 councillors, which is disappointing, they do 
provide the best evidence available to the IRP to judge the time spent on Council 
business and the general comments on the current allowance scheme.  The IRP does not 
doubt that some individual councillors choose to spend far in excess of ‘the average’ on 
Council business. 
 
During the interviews, the IRP was given no compelling evidence to suggest that the basic 
allowance should be increased, over and above the indexation link to the local 
government pay award.  At a time of major budget constraint the IRP do not consider 
that there should be a departure from the level of allowances adopted by the Council.  

 
Recommendation: retain the existing level of the Basic Allowance (See 
Appendix B) subject to annual increase in line with the percentage increase of 
the local government pay award. 
 

7.3  Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) 
 
A Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) is paid to those councillors who have significant 
additional responsibilities over and above their roles and duties as a ward councillor and 
these include: 

  
• A Cabinet Member 
• A leader or deputy leader of a political group 
• A chair of a committee or sub-committee of the authority or a joint committee 

representing the authority at meetings of, or arranged by, any other body 
• A member of a committee or sub-committee which meets with exceptional 

frequency or for exceptionally long periods 
• Acting as a spokesperson of a political group on a committee or sub-committee 
• Undertaking any other activities in relation to the discharge of the authority’s 

function as to require equal or greater effort of the member than any of the 
activities listed above. 
 

As with the analysis of the roles and functions of councillors, the IRP was given no 
compelling evidence that those roles that attracted a SRA had substantially changed since 
the previous two IRP reports and therefore have concluded that the current SRAs should 
remain with the same indexation link to the annual local government pay award as for the 
Basic Allowance (See paragraphs 7.4 and 7.5 below concerning 2 SRAs that were subject 
to specific consideration). 

Page 32



 
Recommendation: retain the existing level of SRAs (see Appendix B) subject 
to annual increase in line with the percentage increase of the local 
government pay award. 

 
7.4 Chair of Cooperative Scrutiny Management Board 
 
 The IRP was asked to give specific consideration to the SRA for the Chair of the 

Cooperative Scrutiny Management Board as part of the revised scrutiny arrangements 
agreed by the Council on 22 April 2013.  The key roles of scrutiny remain: 

 
• Holding the Cabinet to account and providing a check on activities through ‘call in’ 

powers 
• Policy development and review through in-depth analysis of council policy issues 

including budgetary decisions and proposals 
• Reviewing and scrutinising the performance of the council in implementing policies 

and the impact on communities    
• Scrutinising the work and impact of services provided by external agencies on the 

community 
 
 The new Cooperative Scrutiny Management Board manages a structure of four Scrutiny 

Panels (reduced from the previous five Panels). Each Scrutiny Panel includes councillors 
from all political groups as well as a number of voluntary and statutory co-opted 
representatives.  The Cooperative Scrutiny Management Board agrees the work 
programmes for each of the Scrutiny Panels and oversees progress of this work. 

  
The IRP was informed that as a result of cross party political agreement establishing the 
new scrutiny structure, the Cooperative Scrutiny Management Board is now chaired by a 
member of the main opposition political party. The IRP was made aware that the Chair of 
the Cooperative Scrutiny Management Board no longer chairs one of the individual 
Scrutiny Panels. 
 
In both the 2008 and 2010  IRP reviews there was a great deal of analysis of the 
importance that Plymouth City Council placed on having a robust and challenging scrutiny 
process and the importance that the scrutiny function plays in ensuring the implications of 
policy proposals are well understood. The size of the SRA originally given to the Chair of 
what was then the Overview and Scrutiny Commission (2003) was at the same level as a 
Cabinet member because of ‘the significant amount of time required and the overarching 
responsibility for the whole scrutiny function and that in order to carry out the role 
effectively the post holder needs to be seen to have status within the authority’. The 
2008 IRP confirmed the view that the ‘Chair’s status should be as important as that of a 
Cabinet member’. In trying to compare this SRA with comparator authorities it became 
evident that there was a wide variation in the operation of scrutiny functions between 
authorities and therefore a like for like comparison was not easy.  
 
The Panel also noted the legal responsibility of the Chair to allow the executive to make 
urgent decisions from time to time.  A decision cannot be ‘called in’ if the Chair of the 
Board agrees that the decision is reasonable and the delay would not be in the interests 
of the council or the public.  
 

 The IRP understands from the questionnaires received and the evidence from interviews 
undertaken with members and officers that the authority still places great emphasis on 
the work of scrutiny panels and the role of the Chair of the Cooperative Scrutiny 

Page 33



Management Board and is persuaded that the importance placed on this position by the 
City Council had not diminished since the previous IRP reviews. 

 
 Recommendation: retain the existing level of allowance for the Chair of the 

Cooperative Scrutiny Management Board (see Appendix B) subject to annual 
increase in line with the percentage increase of the local government pay 
award  

 
7.5 Leader of the Opposition  
 
 During the course of this review, the relative level of allowances of the Leader of the 

Opposition (Band 4) and the Chair of the Co-operative Scrutiny Management Board 
(Band 2) was raised.  The IRP noted that with the new scrutiny arrangements it was the 
responsibility of the Leader of the Opposition to appoint a member of his/her political 
group to the position of Co-operative Scrutiny Management Board Chair. 

 
 The IRP carefully considered all the representations made, and recognised the difficulties 

this differential may present within a political group.  However, as there has been no 
change to the role or responsibilities of the Leader of the Opposition the IRP could see 
no reason to alter the level of SRA previously set for this role.  The IRP also considered 
information from comparator authorities about the SRA for the role and were content 
that the current allowance is at the correct level.  

 
 Recommend: retain the current level of allowance for the Leader of the 

Opposition (see Appendix B) subject to annual increase in line with the 
percentage increase of the local government pay award  

 
7.6 Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor’s Allowance 
 
 The IRP was informed that the allowances for Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor did 

not currently form part of the Members’ Allowance Scheme.  Consequently, the levels of 
allowances paid for both have never been reviewed as part of the scheme and had not 
been reported on as part of the Members’ Allowance scheme.    

 
 The Lord Mayor is the official representative of the Crown in the city.  In accordance 

with the Local Government Act 1972, the Lord Mayor shall have precedence in the 
Plymouth city area, but not so as to ‘prejudicially affect Her Majesty’s Royal Prerogative’. 
In practice, this means that the Lord Mayor is accorded the status of the city’s First 
Citizen, only giving way in the presence of the Sovereign or his/her representative (i.e. 
Her Majesty’s Lord-Lieutenant for the county). 

As the First Citizen of the city, the Lord Mayor represents the city and all its people and 
undertakes up to 400 official engagements annually with a great emphasis on supporting 
and promoting the interests of the city whilst undertaking a wide range of ceremonial and 
civic duties. 

The Lord Mayor chairs meetings of the full council.  In the absence of the Lord Mayor, 
the Deputy Lord Mayor will chair a meeting of the full council. 
 

 The Deputy Lord Mayor attends engagements for and on behalf of the Lord Mayor where 
the Lord Mayor is unavailable.  For major civic ceremonies, the Lord Mayor and Deputy 
Lord Mayor will both be present 

 

Page 34



 Their allowances (£13,958.44 allocated to the Lord Mayor and £4,599.20 to the Deputy 
Lord Mayor) are intended to cover expenses, not only for the Lord Mayor, the Deputy 
Lord Mayor but also for the Lady Mayoress/Consort and the Deputy Lady Mayoress.  

  
The IRP acknowledged the significant expectations and time commitment for the 
individuals undertaking these responsibilities as well as the very high profile of the roles.  
The IRP noted that the allowances are used to meet the significant, additional personal 
costs associated with the roles and considered that the opportunity to become the First 
Citizen, whilst being a great honour, should be open to all councillors regardless of 
personal circumstances.  
 
The IRP considered that for reasons of openness and transparency the Lord Mayor’s and 
the Deputy Lord Mayor’s allowances should be included within the Members’ Allowance 
scheme and be subject to regular review in line with all other members’ allowances and 
increased in line with local government pay awards. 

 
 Recommendation: retain the existing level of allowances for the Lord Mayor 

and the Deputy Lord Mayor and include the allowances within the Members’ 
Allowance Scheme, subject to annual increase in line with the percentage 
increase of the local government pay award. 

 
7.7 Travelling and subsistence 
 
 The current arrangements are that Members are entitled to claim travelling and 

subsistence allowances that are necessarily met in carrying out their official duties as 
councillors outside the city boundary (in line with council officers’ rates).  Members may 
not claim such allowances for duties undertaken within the city boundary because the 
Basic Allowance is deemed to cover such expenditure. 

 
The IRP took into consideration concerns raised during interviews about whether the 
current subsistence rate for an overnight stay in London was sufficient.  However, it was 
noted that arrangements contained within the ‘Plymouth Book’ (which contains 
supporting information in relation to agreed terms and conditions, including travel and 
subsistence rates for officers) were currently the subject of negotiation with the Trades’ 
Unions and the IRP would expect that the cost of overnight accommodation within 
London would be a feature in any newly negotiated set of arrangements.  

 
 Recommendation: retain the existing travelling and subsistence arrangements 

and amend in line with any changes negotiated to the ‘Plymouth Book’ (see 
Appendix B). 

 
7.8 Childcare and dependent carers’ allowances 
 
 The IRP did not receive any representations concerning the existing arrangements but did 

receive some positive comments that individuals were not discouraged from standing as a 
councillor because they are responsible for children, elderly relatives or people with 
disabilities.   
The maximum period of entitlement for the allowance to be claimed is the duration of 
the approved duty plus reasonable travelling time.  The allowance should not be paid to a 
member of the claimant’s own household.   

 
 One member commented that these allowances could not be claimed for ward and 

community work but recognised this was an issue for the national government.  The 

Page 35



Panel noted that the Regulations state that these allowances may only be claimed for 
approved duties (as specified in the Regulations) and any other duty approved by the 
authority in connection with the discharge of the duties of the authority or its 
committees or sub-committees (see Appendix C). 

 
 Recommendation: retain the existing arrangements (see Appendix B). 
 
7.9 Co-opted members allowance 
 
 The current scheme does not provide an allowance for co-opted members.  Co-opted 

members may claim travel and subsistence expenses (against receipts) in order that they 
are not out of pocket for undertaking approved Council business. 

 
 The IRP interviewed a co-opted committee member and acknowledged the importance of 

co-opted members’ time, knowledge and expertise as being essential to the work of the 
Council.  However, it understands that co-opted members do not normally have any 
further commitment to the council other than attending meetings, on average, between 
four and six times a year and reading prepared reports in advance of the meetings. 

 
The IRP sees no reason to amend the current scheme. 

 
 Recommendation: retain the existing arrangements (see Appendix B). 
 
7.10 Lead Member 
 

In February 2008, the Council agreed that: 
 
a) The allowance for Lead Members be immediately deleted from the scheme; 
b) However, if the council wishes to appoint Lead Members they should carefully define 

their role, term of office and responsibilities; 
c) If b) has been undertaken and the Council wishes to provide an allowance for lead 

members, the Panel’s guidance should be requested. 
 

The IRP was asked to consider whether an allowance for Lead Members would be 
appropriate, if the role were to be reintroduced. 
 
A Lead Member is a councillor who usually has an interest or expertise in a particular 
field and who the Council appoints to ensure that the interest is promoted and taken into 
account in the preparation of key service and corporate plans .There is a comprehensive 
guide ‘Member Champions Guidance and Advice’ which covers what should be 
considered before appointing a Lead Member.  The 2008 IRP came to the same 
conclusion as the 2003 review which was that Lead Member roles should not be 
remunerated, but should such posts be paid then they should be open to members of any 
political party who had special knowledge/skills in the area of the responsibility. 
 
The IRP reviewed whether allowances were paid by other authorities in Devon and 
Cornwall and the Audit Commission ‘family group’ of comparator authorities to lead 
members/champions.  They also considered some draft proposals about potential 
responsibilities of lead members.  
 
The majority of councils do not pay allowances to Lead Members.  Where authorities in 
Devon and Cornwall and in the Audit Commission’s ‘family group’ do pay SRAs, the levels 
range between £0 and £5,000/year (with only one paying at the upper end of £5000). 

Page 36



 
The IRP is aware of previous guidance from the government which states, ‘The 
Regulations do not limit the number of Special Responsibility Allowances which may be 
paid’, ‘however, these are important considerations for local authorities. If the majority of 
members of a council receive a Special Responsibility Allowance, the local electorate may 
rightly question whether this was justified. Local authorities will wish to consider very 
carefully the additional roles of members and the significance of these roles, both in terms 
of responsibility and real time commitment before deciding which will warrant the 
payment of a Special Responsibility Allowance.’ 
 
The Council currently pays a Special Responsibility Allowance to 25 of its Members.  If 
the Lord Mayor’s and Deputy Lord Mayor’s allowances are included within the scheme, 
27 Members would receive an allowance. This would result in close to 50% of Members 
receiving an SRA.   
 
The IRP could see advantages relating to the appointment of Lead Members/Champions in 
terms of member development and succession planning and assisting Cabinet members 
with specific, time limited projects.  However, the IRP remained unconvinced that an 
allowance should be paid at this stage.  The IRP was willing to consider further proposals 
at a later stage but asked for greater clarity around specific roles.   
  
 Recommendation: retain the existing arrangements.  

 
7.11 Adjustment Index 
 
 The IRP noted that since 2008, members’ allowances had not increased.  The majority of 

Members’ Allowance Schemes were increased in line with the local government pay 
award.   

 
 The increases take effect from 1 April each year, though the Panel noted that, as local 

government salaries had not increased since 2009, Members had not received any 
increases to their allowances since 2009. 

 
The previous full review undertaken by the IRP concluded that the annual adjustment 
method for the Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances was that they should be 
increased annually in line with the local government pay award percentage increase (as 
applied to spinal column point 49 of the NJC scheme) and that increases should take 
effect from 1 April each year. 

 
Recommendation:  retain the existing indexation arrangements of annual 
increase in line with the percentage increase of the local government pay 
award.  
 

7.12 Foregoing entitlement to allowances 
 

The previous full review undertaken by the IRP concluded that (in line with the 
regulations) a Member need not claim allowances to which they are entitled and could 
opt out if they wished.  Such notice should be provided in writing. 
 
Recommendation: retain the existing arrangements. 
 
 
 

Page 37



7.13 Time limit for claiming dependent carer’s/travelling/subsistence allowances 
 
 The previous full review undertaken by the IRP concluded that Members should have a 
time limit of three months to claim back such expenditure.  However, the Panel noted 
that the authority may make reimbursements outside that time limit. 

 
Recommendation: retain the existing arrangements. 

 
7.14 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
 

Members are currently eligible to join the LGPS.  The IRP noted that the government had 
recently undertaken a consultation about the eligibility of elected members to join local 
government pension schemes.  The outcome was awaited. 

 
 Recommendation: retain the existing arrangements. 
 
 

Issues that arose during the course of the review 
  
7.15 Special Responsibility Allowances for Chief Whips 
 

The IRP was asked to consider whether the political groups’ chief whips should receive a 
Special Responsibility Allowance because a considerable amount of time, stated as 
between 10 to 20 hours/week, could be spent on meeting with officers and undertaking 
other duties. 
 
The IRP noted that the position of chief whip was not recognised in the section of the 
current national Regulations that refers to SRAs.  The positions specifically referred to in 
the Regulations are: 
 

• Acting as Leader or Deputy Leader of a political group 
• Being a Cabinet member 
• Chairing a committee, sub-committee or joint committee 
• Representing the authority at meetings of another body 
• Membership of a committee or sub-committee which meets with exceptional 

frequency or for exceptionally long periods 
• Acting as a spokesperson for a political group on a committee or a sub-committee 
• Membership of an adoption appeals panel or panel dealing with licensing or 

controlling any activity 
   

In addition, the Regulations state that any other activities in relation to the discharge of 
the authority’s functions as to require equal or greater effort of the member than any of 
the activities listed above may receive an SRA. 
 
The Panel noted that the position of chief whip was not a legislative requirement, that no 
council in the south west paid an SRA to a group whip and that only one of the 
comparator authorities paid an SRA to its group whips.  The duties of the chief whip 
include nominating Members to committees and outside bodies, in consultation with the 
group leader and it may be assumed that the remainder of duties are political in nature. 
 
The IRP concluded, therefore, that there was no substantive reason to amend the current 
arrangements 

  

Page 38



Recommendation: retain the existing arrangements 
 

7.16 Special Responsibility Allowance for the Vice Chair of the Co-operative 
Scrutiny Board 

  
 The IRP was asked to consider whether this position should attract a small, proportional 

SRA due to the extra responsibilities of this role, the need to attend extra meetings and 
thorough preparation for meetings being required in order to maximise the effectiveness 
of the role.   

 
 The IRP noted that each member of the Co-operative Scrutiny Management Board 

currently receives a SRA.  The chair receives £20,286.48, the members who chair a 
scrutiny panel receive £10,145.28 and the non-chair members receive £5,072.52. 

 
 The Panel also noted the statutory guidance which highlights that it doesn’t necessarily 

follow that any particular responsibility is so significant as to warrant an SRA.  This is 
because most Members have some responsibility to varying degrees.  Whilst the 
responsibilities of the vice chair of the Co-operative Scrutiny Board are unique to one 
Member, it was noted that the vice chair role of each of the scrutiny panels also involves 
additional responsibility and an extra workload. 

 
In 7.4, the Panel noted the legal responsibility of the Chair of the Board to allow the 
executive to make urgent decisions from time to time and also noted that, in the absence 
of the chair, this responsibility did not fall to the vice chair but to the Lord Mayor.   

 
 The IRP concluded, therefore, that there was no substantive reason to amend the current 

arrangements 
 
 Recommendation: retain the existing arrangements. 
 

 
  

Page 39



APPENDIX A 
 
Analysis of questionnaire 
 
The Panel sent out two separate questionnaires; one to all Cabinet members and one to all 
other members. Two Cabinet members and eighteen other members returned the 
questionnaire.  
 
The Panel collated the information about the amount of time councillors thought they spent in 
their role: 
 
All members 
 
Average  44 hours per week 
 
Cabinet Members 
 
Average  46.5 hours per week 
 
The results are comparable with the time spent on council duties when the last full review of 
Members’ Allowances was undertaken in 2007. (In 2007, Members spent an average of 44 
hours/week on council duties.) 
 
A majority of councillors commented that they felt the allowance they received was ‘about right’ 
and the allowance was sufficient to allow them to undertake their duties.   
 
Some councillors felt that it wasn’t the right time to look at increasing the allowances when the 
Council had to make substantial savings which would undoubtedly impact on employees. 
 
The IRP gave significant weight to the findings from the questionnaires and comments, and 
specifically followed up on the questionnaire analysis during the personal interviews with 
councillors and officers. 

 

Page 40



APPENDIX B 
 
 

 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCE SCHEME 

Summary of basic allowance and special responsibility allowances 
from 1 April 2013 

 
BASIC ALLOWANCE (per year for all 57 councillors) 
 

£ 

Basic Allowance 10,145.28 
  
SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES (in addition to the basic 
allowance) (Numbers in brackets refer to the number of Members claiming 
this allowance) 
 

 

The Executive (Leader and the Cabinet)  
Leader of the Council (1) 30,432.96 
Deputy Leader of the Council (1) 21,414.36 
Cabinet Member (6) 20,286.48 

  
Overview and Scrutiny Committees  
 Chair of Co-operative Scrutiny Board (1) 20,286.48 
 Chairs of Scrutiny Panels (4) 10,145.28 
 Co-operative Scrutiny Board Members (5) 5,072.52 
  
Regulatory Committees  
 Chair of Planning Committee (1) 10,145.28 
 Vice Chair of Planning (1) 5,072.52 
 Chair of Licensing Committee (1) 10,145.28 
 Chair of Taxi Licensing (1) 10,145.28 
 Chair of Audit (1) 5,072.52 
  
Opposition Groups  
 Leader of the largest minority party (1) 10,145.28 
 Leader of other minority parties (0) 5,072.52 
 Deputy Leader of largest minority party (1) 5,072.52 
  
Mayoralty  
 Lord Mayor (1) 14,091.96 
 Deputy Lord Mayor (1)      4,651.20 
  
 
DEPENDENT CARERS ALLOWANCE 
Members’ are entitled to claim for the duration of the approved duty plus reasonable travelling 
time.  The allowance should not be payable to a member of the claimant’s own household.  See 
Appendix C. 
 
TRAVEL ALLOWANCES AND SUBSISTENCE EXPENSES 
Car, Motorcycle and Bicycle Allowance Rates are set in lines with those paid to officers of the 
authority.  Existing travel and subsistence arrangements will continue, i.e. that Members are 
entitled to claim such allowances necessarily met in carrying out their official duties as councillors 
outside of the city boundary (in line with the officers’ scheme). 

Page 41



 
Travel within Plymouth and peninsula (counties of Devon, Cornwall, Somerset and 
Dorset)  
 
HMRC RATE:  
45p per business mile up to 10,000 miles  
25p per business mile over 10,000 miles  
 
‘Out of Peninsula rate’:  
25p per business mile  
 
Low emission car rate (travel within Plymouth and Peninsula)  
Cars with up to 110g/km CO2 emissions, and/or in tax band A or B:  
50p per business mile up to 10,000 miles  
29p per business mile over 10,000 miles  
 
HMRC passenger rate:  
5p per business mile per passenger 

Meals and subsistence rates 

Breakfast 
Irregular starter before 6am. This rate does not apply if employee regularly leaves home before 
6am. 

• Maximum claim - £5 
 

One meal rate 
Where an employee is away from the normal place of work for a period of more than five hours. 

• Maximum claim - £5 
 

Two meals rate 
Where an employee is away from the normal place of work for a period of more than 10 hours. 

• Maximum claim - £10 
 

Late evening meal 
Irregular late finisher - where an employee is away from the normal place of work outside of 
their normal working hours and after 8pm. 

• Maximum claim - £10 
 

Only a maximum of three meals can be reimbursed per day. Alcohol cannot be purchased within 
the allowance. 
 
Overnight stays 
Accommodation will be reimbursed for overnight stays where it is impractical for a day-return 
or where the overnight stay represents better value for money. Reimbursements will be made 
when presented with a valid VAT receipt. 

• Bed and breakfast outside of London (M25): Maximum payment - £65 
• Bed and breakfast within London/M25 boundaries: Maximum payment - £85 

 
 
 

Page 42



 
APPENDIX C 

 
Approved duties and claiming childcare and dependent carers’ allowances 
 
If a councillor is responsible for the care of children, elderly relatives or people with disabilities, 
childcare and dependent carers’ allowances may be claimed (against receipts).  The maximum 
period  of  the  entitlement  is  the duration  of  the  approved  duty  plus reasonable  travelling 
time.  The allowance should  not  be  payable  to  a  member  of the  claimant’s  own  household.   
 
Approved duties are: 
 

• attending a committee, sub-committee or outside body meeting  
• attendance at any other authorised meeting (provided that it is a meeting to which 

Members of at least two political groups have been invited)  
• attendance at a meeting of any association of authorities of which the authority is a 

member  
• attendance at any Cabinet meeting  
• performance of any duty connected with the opening of tenders  
• performance of any duty requiring the authority to inspect or authorise the inspection of 

any premises  
• performance of any duty in connection with arrangements for the attendance of pupils at 

any school approved for the purposes of section 342 (approval of non-maintained special 
schools) of the Education Act 1996  

• attendance at development and learning events 
• the carrying out of any other duty approved by the authority for the purpose of or in 

connection with the discharge of the functions of the authority or any of its committees 
or sub-committees  

 

 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Revised Jul 2013 

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject:    Capital Programme approvals  

Committee:    City Council  

Date:    25 November 2013 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Lowry  

CMT Member:   Malcolm Coe, Assistant Director for Finance  

Author: Simon Arthurs, Group Accountant – Capital & Major Projects  

Contact details  E mail: simon.arthurs@plymouth.gov.uk  

    Tel:  01752 307358  
Ref:     

Key Decision: No 
Part: I    
 
Purpose of the report:  
 
This report sets out the proposals recommended by Cabinet on 12 November 2013 on capital 
budget expenditure, for Council to approve an increase to the Transformation Capital budget 
2013/14 of £0.627m, to enable the Civic Centre decant.  
 
It also sets out the proposals from the Plan for Homes report also on the Cabinet agenda 12 
November 2013, that Council agree to include within the Capital Programme a significant Affordable 
Housing Loan Facility and to release further city-council-owned sites in support of The Plan for 
Homes and the delivery of more affordable homes.  
 
Following approval of the recommendations in this report this will bring the revised medium term 
programme 2013/14-2016/17 to £212.484m, subject to the due diligence of the Plans for Homes 
initiative. 
         
The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/14 -2016/17:  
 
This report is linked to delivering the priorities set out in the Council’s corporate plan.  Targeting 
the Council’s resources in a planned manner in order to align expenditure with key priorities will 
maximise the benefits to residents and businesses in Plymouth.  
 
On 22nd July 2013 the Corporate Plan was agreed with a specific commitment to create more 
decent homes to support the population.  This included reference to The Plan for Homes being 
developed alongside the Plymouth Housing Development Partnership in support of “Growing 
Plymouth”.   
 
The Plan for Homes will also support other aspects of the Corporate Plan, for example supporting 
the provision of accommodation for older people and specialist accessible and wheelchair housing as 
part of delivering a range and mix of new, greener homes. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 45



 

Revised Jul 2013 

With the further capital scheme increase recommended for the Civic Centre decant, the 
projected capital spend now includes an additional £0.627m. This additional 2013/14 funding is 
proposed to be funded from unsupported borrowing, the cost of which will be met from the 
ongoing revenue budget for corporate accommodation costs. Revenue costs associated with the 
capital project delivery will be met from the revenue provision identified to support the 
transformation programme. 
 
The establishment of a significant loan facility for The Plan For Homes of up to a potential £50 
million, subject to due diligence, to support affordable housing delivery over the next 5 years will 
need to be included within the capital programme and give regard to the overall borrowing cap for 
the city council’s capital resources.  The release of council owned sites for housing development will 
need to give appropriate consideration to obtaining value for money from the sites taking account of 
the housing outcomes sought. 
 
In addition, the Plan for Homes is consistent with the recently agreed Transformation Programme: in 
particular the concept of a Plymouth Growth Dividend within the Growth and Municipal Enterprise 
theme. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management: 
 
The public sector is facing reduced revenue and capital resources which has been identified as a 
key risk within the Council’s Strategic Risk register.   
   
The provision of greener homes will address issues of child poverty and, alongside better designed 
homes, support higher educational attainment.  The central risk to the Plan for Homes remains 
the general economic climate which can be addressed through the suite of initiatives the City 
Council is pursuing to support Plymouth’s economy.  The continued resistance to new housing 
also remains one of the highest risks, which can be addressed by the City Council supporting the 
“Yes to Homes” campaign. There are risks associated with the capacity and capability of the 
development industry to build at higher levels.  There are also risks in connection with the 
operational details of the Affordable Housing Loan Facility in relation to state aid, the 
establishment of clear and transparent loan criteria, including the approach to defaults, and the 
management and administration of the loans.  These risks can be mitigated by developing the 
governance arrangements of the existing Plymouth Housing Development Partnership and having 
clear loan protocols before any funding is released. 

 
Equality and Diversity 

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?   No  

  
Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 
 
1. The City Council is recommended to approve an increase to the Council’s Capital 
Transformation budget 2013/14 of £0.627m to enable the Civic Centre decant. 
 
Reason: The future locations of staff and services decanting from the Civic Centre will directly 
support the Pioneering and Caring priorities of the council by providing the essential customer 
services in the city.   
 

2. The City Council is recommended to approve including the Plan for Homes within the Capital 
Programme from 2014/2015 until 2019/2020 with an allocation of up to £50 million (subject to 

Page 46



 

Revised Jul 2013 

due diligence) in support of the affordable housing loan facility to the Plymouth Housing 
Partnership. 
 

Reason: To provide sufficient funding to support the acceleration of affordable housing delivery. 
 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
 
The proposed increase to the Capital Transformation budget to enable the Civic Centre decant, will 
not proceed without Council approval. 
 
Plan For Homes Option 1: Continue with the Get Plymouth Building Programme – this 2-3 year 
initiative is aimed at maintaining the momentum of housing delivery in the city through 8 proactive 
planning and housing initiatives and in and of itself would be insufficient to address the full housing 
needs of the city as set out in the Corporate Plan. 
 
Plan For Homes Option 2: Leave the private sector to deliver more homes – past experience of 
delivery rates indicates that this would be insufficient to meet the city’s needs and so therefore a 
more transformational approach is required. 
 
 
Published work / information: 

12 November 2013 Cabinet Report The Plan for Homes 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/mgInternet/documents/s50564/The%20Plan%20for%20Homes.pdf 

12 November 2013 Cabinet Corporate Monitoring Report as at 30 September 2013 (including capital 
schemes and programme approvals)  

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/mgInternet/documents/s50572/Corporate%20Monitoring%20Report%20
as%20at%2030%20September%202013%20including%20capital%20schemes%20programme%20approv
als.pdf 

Cabinet Minutes 62 and 64 of 12 November 2013 
 
Background papers: 
 

Title Part 1 Part II Exemption Paragraph Number 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

 Part I         
 Part I         
 Part 1         

    
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin djn13

14.22 
Leg 1891

0/DV
S 

Mon 
Off 

TH
013
5 

HR n/a Assets CJT/1
21/14
1113 

IT n/a Strat 
Proc 

n/a 

Originating SMT Member:  Malcolm Coe Assistant Director for Finance 
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report?  Yes Councillor Mark Lowry 
  

Page 47



 

Revised Jul 2013 

1.0 Capital Schemes referred from Cabinet on 12th November 2013 – New Approvals 
 
1.1  Cabinet agreed that the City Council is recommended to approve an increase to the capital 

Transformation budget which will increase the budget by £0.627m to £4.063m to allow for 
the Civic Centre decant.  

 
2.0 Capital Schemes referred from Cabinet on 12th November 2013 – The Plan For 

Homes 
 

2.1 The Director for Place submitted a report on proposals to establish a programme of 
initiatives to help achieve a step change in the delivery of homes within Plymouth.  The Plan 
for Homes aimed to bring forward 1,000 homes per annum over the next five years to 
address the severe housing needs within the city and to support the growth agenda. 
 

2.2 The report also sought agreement to include within the Capital Programme a significant 
Affordable Housing Loan Facility and to the release of further City Council-owned sites in 
support of the Plan for Homes and the delivery of more affordable homes. 
 

2.3 Councillor Lowry (Cabinet Member for Finance) introduced the proposals and indicated that 
the loan facility would be available only to registered social landlords and co-operative 
associations, not to private developers.   
 

2.4 The City Council, at the meeting on 25 November 2013, would be asked to sign up to the 
‘Say Yes to Homes’ Campaign. 
 

2.5 Members’ attention was also drawn to the Plan for Homes and Get Plymouth Building 
brochures which were available to members at the meeting.  
 

2.6 Paul Barnard (Assistant Director for Planning Services) reported that the draft plan had been 
considered by the Working Plymouth Scrutiny Panel on 25 September 2013, and their 
suggestions had been incorporated into the document.  A progress report would be 
submitted to the panel after a year, as requested.  
 

2.7 Cabinet also recommended that the Plan for Homes is included within the Capital Programme 
from 2014/2015 until 2019/2020 with an allocation of up to £50 million (subject to due 
diligence) in support of the affordable housing loan facility to the Plymouth Housing 
Partnership. 

 
3.0 Following approval of these recommendations this brings the revised medium term 

programme 2013/14-2016/17 to £212.484m, subject to the due diligence of the Plans for 
Homes initiative. 

 
 

Page 48



 

CITY COUNCIL 
  25 November 2013

 
 
YES TO HOMES CAMPAIGN 
 

This Council notes that: 

 

• We are not building enough homes in England to meet housing needs, with most 
commentators identifying the level of need at around 265,000 homes per annum. 

• Rising house  prices mean the dream  of home ownership is beyond  the  reach of 
millions and the  size of a mortgage  deposit alone  stops  many would-be first-time  
buyers from getting on the  housing ladder. 

• One in 12 families in England is now  on a social housing waiting list. 

• The  average  house  price in Plymouth  in 20 12 was £ 159,281  making the standard  20% 
mortgage deposit  £31 ,856. 

• Evidence from  the 2013 Strategic  Housing Market  Needs Assessment indicates the  median 
annual  earnings to  be £23,600 with almost 40% of households earning  below £20,000, 
meaning  that  £29,829 (with a  I 0% deposit) is required to purchase a lower  quartile  house 
of £I 16,000 or to afford the average  market rent for a two  bed property. 

• A lower quartile  house costs 6.3 times  the  income of a household earning a lower  quartile 
salary. 

• 80% of future housing needs are for  one  and two  bedrooms affordable  homes. 

• Customers seeking housing advice have increased  by 41% and the  total  housing waiting list 
stands at 10,100 - all signs of the  housing market being under  severe stress. 

• The  Government have provided  assistance with mortgage  deposits. 

This Council believes that: 
 

• The solution  to the  housing shortage is to  build more  of the  right homes, in the  
right place, at the  right price. 

• Public opposition is one  of the  main barriers to increasing housing supply and all too  
often the  people  who actually need  homes  are  missing from  local debates. 

• Plymouth  City Council  needs to  take an active role in  making the  case for  
building more homes locally, through  both the  Plymouth  Plan consultations and 
the  neighbourhood planning process. 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 49



 

 

This Council resolves to: 
 

I. Support the  Yes to Homes  campaign, and commits  to increasing  the delivery of 
the right homes,  in the  right place, at the  right price in the  Plymouth  housing 
market  area. 

2.   Work with Yes to Homes supporters, local groups,  and organisations to actively 
make the case for  new homes and explain the  benefits of new homes  for the 
whole community. 

3.   Invite the  Plymouth  Housing Development Partnership to  hold special hearings on 
 housing to help local people, community groups  and businesses  to give evidence  on 
 the need for more homes,  including investigating the  reasons  why people  object  to  
 new homes, and report these findings to the  Working Plymouth Scrutiny Panel. 

4.   Inform local people,  local Members  of Parliament, One  Plymouth, the  Plymouth 
 Growth Board , the  Heart of the South  West Local  Enterprise Partnership, the 
 Plymouth  Housing Development Partnership and the  Plymouth  Regeneration 
 Forum  of this decision. 

 
    
 
Proposed by Councillor Mark Lowry 
 
Seconded by Councillor Patrick Nicholson 
 
 

Page 50



 

9 September 2013  Not protectively marked  

CITY COUNCIL 
  25 November 2013

 
 
 
MOTION ON NOTICE 
 
DEVELOPMENT IN THE NORTH OF THE CITY 
 

Notwithstanding the City Council’s Core Strategy published in 2007, the Council acknowledges 
the Planning Inspector’s findings following the recent public inquiry into the Derriford and Seaton 
Area Action Plan. 

This Council recognises the current uncertainty felt by residents living in the north of our City 
over potential developments in their communities and in particular the future of the Plymouth 
Airport site. 

The Council resolves to ask the Cabinet to bring forward the publication of the Plymouth Plan to 
March 2014 in order to give the citizens of Plymouth a further opportunity to be consulted on the 
Council’s preferred options for the growth of their City and to provide greater certainty on the 
potential funding for vital infrastructure works in the north of Plymouth. 
 
 
    
Proposed by Councillor Ian Bowyer 
 
 
 
Seconded by Councillor Patrick Nicholson 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

9 September 2013  Not protectively marked  

CITY COUNCIL 
  25 November 2013

 
 
 
MOTION ON NOTICE 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AND ENHANCEMENT OF COLIN CAMPBELL COURT AND 
SUPPORT FOR PLYMOUTH CITY CENTRE AS THE RETAIL CENTRE OF THE 
CITY 

 

Following the Council’s recent approvals of out of town retail developments, despite areas of our 
City Centre containing empty and run down retail premises, this Council reaffirms its support for 
retaining the City Centre as the retail heart of Plymouth. 

The Council calls upon the Cabinet to drive the redevelopment of Colin Campbell Court and the 
West End, in consultation with the local community and deliver investment in this vital sector of 
our local economy.  
 
 
    
Proposed by Councillor Patrick Nicholson 
 
 
 
Seconded by Councillor Ian Darcy 
 
 

Agenda Item 11Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Version 2  15 July 2013  Not protectively marked  

CITY COUNCIL 

  MOTION ON NOTICE

 

 

 

MOTION ON NOTICE 

 

 
BEDROOM TAX AND SAFE ROOMS 

   
One in four women have been the victim of domestic abuse, it accounts for 17% of all crime, two 
women a week are killed by a partner or former partner and the findings of a number of case 
reviews into deaths of children in Plymouth have identified domestic abuse as a significant factor. 

Women facing some of the worst domestic abuse benefit from the installation of a number of 
sanctuary scheme measures; which may include the provision of a ‘safe room’; where they and 
their children can go safely if threatened, which is directly linked to the police.  

The government’s bedroom tax however considers these vital safe rooms as a spare room, 
reducing the amount of housing benefit that can be claimed and putting women in jeopardy of 
eviction due to non-payment of rent. Evicting women and their children who have been victims of 
domestic abuse means that not only are they losing their home, they are being penalised for being 
a victim of domestic abuse, and risk becoming more vulnerable to repeat abuse. 

Council notes that Women's Aid and other domestic abuse charities are calling on councils to 
take action to overcome this issue. 

Council resolves to:- 

 

1. Lobby the government to exempt safe rooms from inclusion as bedrooms for the purposes 
of the bedroom tax. 

2. Make Discretionary Housing Payments available in Plymouth to cover reductions in housing 
benefit applied under the bedroom tax for safe rooms, subject to periodic review.   

 

Proposed by Councillor Nicky Williams 

Seconded by Councillor Chris Penberthy 

 

 

Agenda Item 12Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES, OUTSIDE BODIES ETC
	7 MEMBERS' ALLOWANCE SCHEME: REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL
	Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel

	8 Capital Programme Approvals
	9 Yes to Homes Campaign
	10 Development in the north of the city
	11 Redevelopment and enhancement of Colin Campbell Court and support for Plymouth city centre as the retail centre of the city
	12 Bedroom tax and safe rooms

